
Page 1 of 8 

 

 

    

MINUTES OF THE WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE ALLAMUCHY TOWNSHIP COUNCIL                      

                                         HELD ON SEPTEMBER 11, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M. 

 

 

The Township Council convened the workshop meeting in person at 6:30 P.M. on September 11, 2024. 

The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

A moment of silence was held at this time for personal intentions.  Mayor Tuohy requested a moment of 

silence to remember the victims of 9/11.  It was twenty-three years ago, and it was a day that shook 

America.  She requested that the families of those victims be kept in everyone’s thoughts and prayers. 

 

The Municipal Clerk announced that adequate notice of the time, place, and manner of this in person  

Council meeting has been provided in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act by:   

(1)  posting said notice on the municipal building bulletin board.  

(2)  emailing said notice to the press and all others who have requested it. 

(3) posting on the official Town website. 

 

1.    PRESENT:   Mayor Tuohy, Councilwoman Bonanno, Councilwoman Chamberlin, Councilman 

                          Fabula and Councilman Quinoa. 

 

                          Attorney Beilin was present. 

                                        

                           Township Administrator Tatarenko was also present.   

 

2.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

      a.  Regular Meeting – 08/28/2024 as submitted. 

 

           Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, and approved on  

           roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy; 

           ABSTAIN – Councilwoman Chamberlin. 

 

3.   MAYOR’S REPORT: 

 

      a.  State Health Benefits Commission – 2025 Rates – 16.4% Increase – Mayor Tuohy advised that 

           the State Health Benefits will increase by 16.4 % for local government employees.  This change 

           will take effect 2025.    

 

      b.  Water Storage Tank Bid Opening – Mayor Tuohy advised that two bids were received. 

           The first bid received was from JEV Construction LLC in the amount $1,147,000.00 and the 

           second bid was received from VNL Inc. in the $710,500.00.   

 

           Mayor Tuohy advised that the I-Bank needs to review the bids before a bid could be 

           awarded by the municipality. 

 

      c.  Cornerstone, Lone Pine and Oakcrest Road Improvement Project - Mayor Tuohy advised that 

           the paving on this project will begin on or about 10/09/2024.  The sidewalk and Belgian block 

           curb repairs are scheduled to begin on or about 09/23/2024.  

 

 

 



Page 2 of 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           Mayor Tuohy advised that she would contact the Board of Education to find out where  

           the designated bus stops are.  The improvement project may affect the bus stop locations. 

 

           Councilwoman Chamberlin stated that she noticed that there were trees taken down in that 

           development.  

 

           Mayor Tuohy advised that the municipality will be replacing the trees as the trees removed 

           were dead.  The DPW is working with the tree company on this matter as to the type of trees 

           being planted and the number of trees that will be planted. 

 

           Mayor Tuohy stated that it will be determined as time gets closer as to where the tree  

           replacements will occur.  The trees could be replaced in the Fall time as long as the 

           weather is good. 

 

           ADMINISTRATORS’ REPORT 

 

      a.  Correspondence Letters – Panther Valley Mall – Mr. Tatarenko advised that the Panther 

           Valley Mall does not fall under Title 39 (Motor Vehicle and Traffic Regulation) enforcement 

           according to the township code book.  The posting of the speed limit would be up to the  

           property owner’s discretion.        

            

           Atty Beilin stated that the property owner could ask for Title 39 enforcement through the 

           municipality.  The municipality would have to approve the request and consult with the 

           NJ Department of Transportation.  

 

           Councilman Quinoa stated that PVPOA roads are covered by Title 39. 

 

           Mayor Tuohy advised that the municipality approved the roads in Panther Valley to be 

           enforced by Title 39 rules and regulations a long time ago.         

 

           Attorney Beilin stated that the site plan may reflect the approved speed limit.  This matter would 

           need to be researched. 

 

           Mayor Tuohy stated that the three correspondence letters regarding this matter will be referenced  

           in the minutes and included in the correspondence book. 

 

     Mayor Tuohy advised that she had discussed the stormwater drains with Municipal Engineer Masol. 

     The stormwater drains need to be labeled and there are certain specific grates that need to be installed. 

     The existing grates may need to be replaced. There is additional funding available for stormwater 

     improvements but the work needs to be done.  She stated that the township will start moving on this 

     work. 

 

     Mayor Tuohy stated that she had asked the engineer to reach out to the Warren County Engineer 

     to discuss the county possibly taking over Catswamp Road. 

 

     Mayor Tuohy advised that correspondence was received from the Warren Heritage Scenic Byway 

     Committee requesting another representative from the municipality to serve on this committee.     

         

 



Page 3 of 8 

 

 

 

 

    

     Councilman Fabula advised that he would be willing to serve on the Byway Committee. 

 

4.   ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 

  

      a.  Foreclosure/Tax Sale Properties – Attorney Beilin advised that a settlement has been reached  

           with the administrator of the estate of the two properties that have been on the tax sale list and  

           previously discussed. The terms of the settlement have been confirmed.  

 

           Attorney Beilin advised that he would prepare the deeds and paperwork for the municipality 

           to acquire these two tracts of land which will be included in the proposed Rails to Trails 

           property.  He has a resolution prepared for this meeting.  There will be no money transferred  

           until the deeds are filed with Warren County and returned to the Township. 

            

           Mayor Tuohy advised that resident Rich Peters has offered to help clear the trail using his 

           equipment.  She stated that she spoke to the township’s insurance company and a Certificate of 

           Insurance and a hold harmless agreement are required.  Once these documents are received from 

           Mr. Peters, she will have Attorney Beilin review them.    

 

      b.  Drake Matter – Attorney Beilin advised that a meeting is scheduled with Warren County  

           representatives and the Attorney for Warren County regarding the Drake matter.  There have been 

           some communications with the State and the State may take over the enforcement of this matter. 

 

5.   COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 

     a.  Budget/Finance Committee Report – Mayor Tuohy advised that the Budget/Finance 

          Committee will begin work on the 2025 Municipal Budget.  The committee will be meeting 

          with the Chief Financial Officer to put a plan in place.  The CFO position will also be  

          advertised within the next week or so.  

 

6.   CORRESPONDENCE: 

 

     a.  Warren County Commissioners – Delaware Water Gap National Recreation Area Redesignation 

                                                                 Proposal. 

b.  Musconetcong Watershed Association – Stormwater Public Education and Outreach Program  

                                                                       Points.  

c.  Letter Received from Resident – 08/28/2024 

d.  Letter Received from Kim – 08/28/2024 

e.  Letter Received from PJ – 08/28/2024 

f.  Warren County Scenic Byway Committee – Municipal Representative Request 

 

Motion by Councilman Quinoa, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin, carried to accept 

the correspondence as presented.  AYES – All in favor; NAYES – None; ABSTAIN – None; 

ABSENT – None.      

 

7.   MUNICIPAL CLERK’S REPORT 

 

      a.   Raffle Applications – ATFVD – Event to be held 10/19/2024 (Rain Date 10/20/2024) - 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 8 

 

 

 

 

 

            11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and 10/26/2024 – 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. – On-Premise Raffle – 

            Event(s) to be held at the Panther Valley Mall, Route 517, Allamuchy, NJ. 

 

            Motion by Mayor Tuohy, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno, and approved on roll 

            call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor 

            Tuohy.    

 

      b.   OPRA Reform – The Municipal Clerk advised that there was very little noticeable change 

            in the OPRA requests since the new legislation went into effect 09/03/24.  Most of the requests 

            are from realtors for closings, etc.  The new form – standard municipal form – has been uploaded 

            to the municipal website.  The construction permits will be going online so this will provide 

            better access to the information that is currently requested by realtors. 

 

            Mayor Tuohy questioned why the OPRA requests are not going to the State for fulfillment. 

 

            The Municipal Clerk advised that as custodian it would be best to have the OPRA requests 

            filed through the municipal clerk’s office.  It is better to be safe to have the request completed by 

            the municipality since the State is short staffed.  

 

      c.   Approval of Blue Light Permit – AGFAS – Eric Sanders, 3 Locust Court, Allamuchy, NJ. 

 

            Motion by Councilman Fabula, seconded by Councilwoman Bonanno, and approved on roll 

            Call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor 

            Tuohy. 

   

8.   PUBLIC SESSION: 

 

There being no comments from the public the public session was closed. 

    

9.   ORDINANCES – First Reading/Introduction 

 

None. 

 

 10.   ORDINANCES – Second Reading/Public Hearing to be held on 09/25/2024 

 

        a.  # 2024-17 - BOND ORDINANCE PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATION OF $170,000 FOR 

                              IMPROVEMENTS TO WATER/SEWER UTILITY SYSTEM FOR AND BY    

                              THE TOWNSHIP OF ALLAMUCHY IN THE COUNTY OF WARREN, NEW  

                              JERSEY, AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $170,000 BONDS OR  

                              NOTES OF THE TOWNSHIP FOR FINANCING PART OF THE  

                              APPROPRIATION.  

 

 11.   RESOLUTIONS 

 

         Councilman Quinoa requested that Resolution # 2024-105 be removed from the consent 

         agenda list.  

 

 There were no objections to Resolution # 2024-105 being removed from the consent agenda. 

 

 



Page 5 of 8 

 

 

 

  

 

    a.  # 2024-101 – RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF  

                               ALLAMUCHY AUTHORIZING THE AWARD OF A CONTRACT FOR THE  

                               PURCHASE OF FIREFIGHTER PROTECTIVE CLOTHING AND  

                               EQUIPMENT OFF NEW JERSEY STATE COTNRACT (Firefighter One). 

 

    b.  # 2024-102 -  RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF  

                               ALLAMUCHY AUTHORIZING THE PURCHSE OF TRADES, LABOR, AND  

                               MATERIAL FOR LIGHTING AND HVAC OFF THE INTERLOCAL  

                               PURCHASING SYSTEM (TIPS) NATIONAL CO-OP (FACILITY SOLUTIONS  

                               GROUP INC). 

 

           c.  # 2024-103 -  RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION # 2023-79 APPROVING  TITLE 

                                       CHANGE FOR ALLAMUCHY TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COURT  

                                       EMPLOYEE JOANNE JACKSON. 

 

         The Municipal Clerk clarified that the salary amendment of $18.41 per hour was increased to $19.41 

         per hour effective 09/16/2024.  

 

         Mayor Tuohy advised that an interview was held with Ms. Jackson.  She along with Councilman 

         Fabula, the Municipal Court Judge, Court Administrator and representatives of the vicinage were also 

         in attendance.  The interview went well, and the last step of the process was the interview with 

         with the assignment judge.  

 

         Mayor Tuohy stated that Ms. Jackson’s title change was approved by the vicinage. 

         A resolution to change her title is required. 

          

    d.  # 2024-104 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF IN REM TAX  

                               FORECLOSURE FOR BLOCK 203 LOT 4 KNOWN AS 10 LONG BRIDGE 

                               ROAD AND BLOCK 203 LOT 5 KNOWN AS LONG BRIDGE ROAD.   

 

         Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to approve 

         Resolution # 2024-101 to Resolution # 2024-104 as presented.  Roll call vote:  AYES – 

         Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.  

 

    e.  # 2024-105 – RESOLUTION OF THE ALLAMUCHY TOWNSHIP COUNCIL AMENDING 

                               SALARY RESOLUTION # 2024-23 FOR OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 

                               OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ALLAMUCHY.   

   

         At this time, Councilman Quinoa questioned the salary of the previous Water/Sewer employee. 

         Mr. Tatarenko advised that the previous employee was full-time and paid $23.03 per hour.   

         Councilman Quinoa stated the hourly rate equates to $47,900 annually.  He stated that she also 

         received a stipend of approximately $7,000.00 for the accounts payable position. 

 

         Mr. Tatarenko stated originally yes but then the employee resigned from the accounts payable 

         position. 

 

 

 



Page 6 of 8 

 

 

 

 

 

         Councilman Quinoa questioned what the salary was for the Deputy Tax Collector. 

  

         Mr. Tatarenko advised that currently it is $25.97 per hour or approximately $54,000 per year. 

   

         Councilman Quinoa questioned if there were no other additional job duties added and if that  

         included payroll.  

 

         Mayor Tuohy advised that the employee does animal licensing, but the new employee will 

         be handling that job with a backup employee, petty cash, zoning officer secretary duties which 

         the new employee is handling and Hafner Hall Coordinator. 

 

         Councilman Quinoa stated as of this date what duties are performed by the deputy tax collector. 

         Mayor Tuohy advised petty cash, training the new employee to do animal licensing and she  

         still does payroll because you need two people to do payroll. 

 

         Councilman Quinoa stated so no additional duties have been added.  These duties have been  

         performed since the beginning of the year. 

          

         Mayor Tuohy advised correct. 

 

         Councilman Quinoa stated that for the additional duties of water/sewer there will be an additional  

         $10,000 per year and there are no plans to take additional duties away. 

 

         Mayor Tuohy advised you always need two people doing payroll.  The municipal clerk and deputy 

         tax collector covers the front desk three hours out of the day. 

 

         Councilman Quinoa stated that he just wanted to confirm that the current duties will remain 

         and will not be given to someone else.  The amount of $10,000 is a large amount of money.  He 

         added that he doesn’t disagree that there should be an increase, but the increase should be incremental.     

         He stated that the stipend employee was doing additional duties and worked beyond the 40 hours 

         and on weekends. 

 

         Mayor Tuohy advised that the stipend was for accounts payroll.  The employee only worked on the  

         weekend for training with the treasurer that was leaving but did the accounts payable job 

         during the 40-hour week. 

 

         Mayor Tuohy clarified that for the last year there was discussion combining tax and the  

         water/sewer department for auditing purposes.  The purpose of combining the two was to try 

         to comply with the laws of the State with handling money.  Four months of billing is now 

         eight months of billing between tax and water/sewer.  The municipality is trying to comply 

         with the laws of the State in handling money.  The mayor advised that there were $80,000 

         in delinquencies – the delinquencies are down to $20,000.00. 

 

         Councilwoman Bonanno stated that it was critical to bring revenues in as it effects next years’  

         budget.  Increase in revenues is very helpful.  Municipalities need to keep knowledgeable  

         employees at market rate - especially now with the State health benefits increase.  

 

 

 



Page 7 of 8 

 

 

 

 

          

         Mayor Tuohy advised that she had discussed the position with the employee and the employee 

         is up to the challenge of taking on additional duties. 

 

         Councilman Quinoa stated that he just wants to make sure that the other duties do not 

         go away with the additional salary increase.  He added that every department needs a backup. 

         He stated that if all the other duties do not go away he has no problem with the salary 

         increase. 

  

         Mayor Tuohy stated that she made it very clear that if the employee chose to not want to do 

         water/sewer anymore then the additional $10,000.00 would go away. 

 

         Mr. Tatarenko advised that the same amount of work is being done with less people.  There used  

         to be three full-time people now there are two full-time people and one part-time person.   

         There should be compensation for additional duties.   

 

         Councilwoman Chamberlin stated that since it is already September, is this amount a carry through  

         2025 or does it get increased again. 

  

         Mayor Tuohy advised that it would be $10,000.00 now and any bonuses or raises would be  

         additional. 

 

         Mr. Tatarenko stated that the $10,000.00 would be retro back to May 24, 2024.  Starting in 2025,  

         the hourly rate of $30.97 would be adjusted based on whatever cost of living increase is given to the  

         employees. 

 

         There was no further discussion on this matter. 

 

         Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to approve 

         Resolution # 2024-105 as presented.  Roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin,  

         Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy. 

             

12.  NEW BUSINESS/OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      Councilman Quinoa questioned when the treasurer/accounts payable employee’s last day would  

      be. 

       

      Mayor Tuohy stated that the CFO is away, but the CFO has asked her to stay until he comes back. 

 

      Councilman Quinoa questioned if a two-week notice was provided to the township. 

 

      Mr. Tatarenko stated that the employee is willing to stay until the municipality feels 

      she is no longer necessary. 

  

      Mayor Tuohy advised that there is a transition of accounts payable duties to another employee. 

      The current accounts payable individual is looking for another position not in the area. 

 

      Councilman Quinoa questioned if the CFO will be able to stay on after December.   

 

 



Page 8 of 8 

 

 

 

  

 

      Mayor Tuohy stated that the CFO cannot stay on and PVPOA may also need to hire someone 

      to serve as Treasurer of the Special Municipal Services District.  The CFO cannot stay on as 

      the SMSD Treasurer as his salary is paid through a municipal tax.    

 

13.  OLD BUSINESS 

 

      a.  Internet Service for Non-Serviced Areas 

      b.  Ordinance(s) Review  

      c.  Sand Filter Replacement Project 

      d.  Open Space and Recreation Plan – Land Use Board continues the public hearing process. 

      e.   Rails to Trails Project Update – No update. 

    

        14.   PAYMENT OF BILLS (ATTACHMENT) 

                Motion by Councilwoman Chamberlin, seconded by Councilman Quinoa, carried to approve 

                the bill list as presented subject to review by the Finance Committee. 

        

                Roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy. 

             
         15.   PUBLIC SESSION 

 

                 There were no comments from the public and the public session was closed.   

 

    16.   EXECUTIVE SESSION - 7:20 P.M.   

 

            RESOLUTION # 2024-106 - RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

 

            Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to go into 

            executive session at 7:20 p.m. for reasons set forth in the resolution. Roll call vote: 

            AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy.    

 

            Motion by Councilwoman Bonanno, seconded by Councilman Fabula, carried to go out of executive 

            session at 7:32 p.m.  Roll call vote: AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, Bonanno 

            and Mayor Tuohy.    

 

    17.   ADJOURNMENT – 7:33 P.M. 

 

           There being no further business, motion by Councilman Quinoa, seconded by Councilwoman Chamberlin,  

           carried to adjourn at 7:33 p.m. Roll call vote:  AYES – Councilpersons Chamberlin, Quinoa, Fabula, 

           Bonanno and Mayor Tuohy. 

 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

      Anne Marie Tracy, Municipal Clerk 

 

 

      Rosemary Tuohy, Mayor 


